
 
  

CITY OF LAWNDALE 
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California 90260 

Phone (310) 973-3200 – www.lawndalecity.org 
 

AGENDA 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

Monday, May 4, 2020 - 6:30 p.m. 
Lawndale City Hall Council Chamber 

14717 Burin Avenue 
 

* COVID-19 NOTICE * 
Consistent with Executive Orders No.-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive Department of 
the State of California and the Los Angeles County Health Official’s “Safer at Home” Order, this 
City Council meeting will not be physically open to the public as City Councilmembers will be 
teleconferencing into the meeting via Webex Communications. 
 
How to observe the Meeting:  
To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members of the public 
can observe the meeting on YouTube “Lawndale CityTV”, the City Website, or Lawndale Community 
Cable Television on Spectrum & Frontier Channel 3. 
 
How to submit Public Comment:  
Members of the public may provide public comment by sending comments to the Clerk by email at 
cityclerk@lawndalecity.org.  Please submit your written comments as early as possible, preferably prior 
to the start of the meeting or if you are unable to email, please call the City Clerk's Office at (310) 973-
3213 by 5:30 p.m. on the date of the meeting. Email comments must identify the Agenda Item Number 
in the subject line of the email.  The public comment period will close once the public comment time for 
the agenda item has concluded. The comments will be entered into the record and provided to the 
Council. All comments should be a maximum of 500 words, which corresponds to approximately 3 
minutes of speaking time.  Please see the Temporary eComment Policy for Public Meetings. 
 
Copies of this Agenda packet may be obtained prior to the meeting outside of the Lawndale City Hall foyer 
or on the City Website.  Interested parties may contact the City Clerk Department at (310) 973-3213 for 
clarification regarding individual agenda items. 
 

This Agenda is subject to revision up to 72 hours before the meeting. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
B. CEREMONIALS (Flag Salute and Inspiration) 

 
C. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT 

 
D. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (Public Comments) 

 
E. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL 
  

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCfzabQru02YprD2xs5FC2Ow
http://192.168.10.14/CablecastPublicSite/watch/1?channel=3
mailto:cityclerk@lawndalecity.org
http://www.lawndalecity.org/ASSETS/PDF/Corona/City%20of%20Lawndale%20-%20eComment%20Policy.pdf
http://www.lawndalecity.org/HTML/DEPTHTML/CCLERK/CCAgendasMinutes.htm


Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
May 4, 2020 
Page 2 
 
 

 

F. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Items 1 through 6, will be considered and acted upon under one motion unless a City Councilmember 
removes individual items for further City Council consideration or explanation. 

 
1. Motion to read by title only and waive further reading of all ordinances listed on the  

Agenda 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 

 
2. Notice of Completion for Inglewood Avenue Improvement Project 

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) accept the Inglewood Avenue Improvement 
Project; (b) direct Staff to file the Notice of Completion; and (c) direct staff to begin the 
Thirty-Five (35) day claims period and release the project retention. 

 
3. Routine Records Destruction 

Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2005-023, approving 
the requests from Administrative Services/Human Resources for Authorization to destroy 
routine records as listed in exhibits of the Resolution. 

 
4. Accounts Payable Register 

Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2005-022, authorizing 
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $193,361.81. 

 
5. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – April 20, 2020 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 

6. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Special Meeting – April 23, 2020 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 

G. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
7. Adopting the 2020 Los Angeles County Fire Codes by Reference 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve the second reading and adopt Ordinance 
No. 1171-20, adopting the 2020 Los Angeles County Fire Codes by Reference. 
 

H. ADMINISTRATION 
 
8. South Bay Workforce Investment Board (SBWIB) Appointment – Business  

Private Sector Representative 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) review the submitted Statement of Interest 
from Mr. Frank Rodriguez, as supported by the SBWIB; (b) re-affirm the SBWIB’s 
nomination of Mr. Frank Rodriguez as the City of Lawndale’s SBWIB representative on 
the Business Private Industry Council for a term of July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2024 and 
direct staff to provide that name to the SBWIB for the Inglewood Chamber of Commerce’ 
final approval; or Options (c) and (d) as follows; (c) direct staff to open up nominations 
for additional applications including advertising the opening on the City website and City 
social media platforms; and (d) bring the nomination applications to an upcoming City 
Council meeting and provide direction to staff to provide a name to the SBWIB for the 



Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
May 4, 2020 
Page 3 
 
 

 

Inglewood Chamber of Commerce’ final approval, to fill the upcoming vacancy on the 
City of Lawndale’s SBWIB Business Private Industry Council seat for a term of July 1, 
2020 to June 30, 2024. 

 
9. Billboard Subcommittee Selection for Consideration of Two Billboard Sign  

Proposals by Lawndale Media, LLC 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) determine that the proposed action is exempt 
from the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to Section 15378 of 
the CEQA Guidelines: and (b) appoint two (2) City Councilmembers to a Billboard 
Subcommittee to review two billboard proposals. 

 
10. Budget Update for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2020 

Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file the Quarterly Budget Report as 
of March 31, 2020. 

 
11. Considerations of Further Modifications to City Operations Due to the COVID-19  

Pandemic 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) provide direction to staff regarding 
conducting as usual, modified, postponement, or cancellation of the Memorial Day 
Ceremony scheduled for May 25, 2020, and the Health, Safety and Pet Fair scheduled for 
June 6, 2020; and (b) approve the suspension of the Lawndale Beat Transit Service as of 
May 4th until further notice, and reinstate the Lawndale Special Transit Service as soon 
as possible subject to the installation of safety equipment and protocols for rider safety. 

 
12. Update on the Use of the Best Western Hotel as a Temporary Homeless Shelter  

through “Project Roomkey” 
Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file this report, and provide 
direction to staff as appropriate. 
 

I. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT  
 

J. ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 
 

13. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 

K. CLOSED SESSION 
 

14. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 
The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.9(d)(4), because the City is considering whether to initiate litigation in one case 
against Best Western Plus South Bay Hotel and the County of Los Angeles. 

 
L. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council will be held at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, 
May 18, 2020 in the Lawndale City Hall council chamber, 14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, 
California. 
 



Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
May 4, 2020 
Page 4 
 
 

 

It is the intention of the City of Lawndale to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in 
all respects.  If, as an attendee or a participant at this meeting, you will need special assistance beyond 
what is normally provided, we will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable manner.  Please 
contact the City Clerk Department (310) 973-3213 prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular 
needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible.  Please advise us at that time if you will need 
accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis. 
 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the Agenda 
for the regular meeting of the City Council to be held on May 4, 2020 was posted not less than 
72 hours prior to the meeting. 

 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk 



1



2



















3





















4





Claims and Demands Paid By Check:

Check Date Beginning Ending Aggregate Total

4/23/2020 199443 199478 193,361.81

Total Checks 193,361.81

Claims and Demands Paid By Electronic ACH Transfer:

Date Name of Payee Description Amount

Total ACH Payments 0.00

Total Audited Claims and Demands Paid 193,361.81

City of Lawndale

Summary of Audited Claims and Demands

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Check Number



City of Lawndale

Check Register Report

Check DateCheck Number Status Amount

BANK: 

Vendor Number Vendor Name Check Description

WELLS FARGO BANK N.A 1Page:
11:10 amTime:

04/23/2020Date:

Void/Stop Date

WELLS FARGO BANK N.A Checks

42,100.85LEGAL SVCS - JAN. 2020ALESHIRE & WYNDER, LLP1541Printed04/23/2020199443
3,423.41SCHOOL CROSSING GUARD SERVICESALL CITY MANAGEMENT SVCS, INC0112Printed04/23/2020199444
1,731.34MAINTENANCE CONTRACT SERVICESAT&T GLOBAL SERVICES, INC.1056Printed04/23/2020199445
3,835.00SECURITY DEP REFUNDDAVID CAAMAL 7509Printed04/23/2020199446

18,243.50STREET SWEEPING SVCS- CONTRACTCLEANSTREET0615Printed04/23/2020199447
484.74SITE PLAN REVIEW DEP REFUNDLILIA CONTRERAS 6372Printed04/23/2020199448
200.20CONTRACT CLASS INSTRUCTOR SVCSROSALIND COOK 5361Printed04/23/2020199449

11,145.81TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINT SVCS-2/20COUNTY OF LA DEPT OF PUBLIC WK0219Printed04/23/2020199450
64.00FINGERPRINTING APPS - MAR-2020DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE0218Printed04/23/2020199451

3,920.00CONTRACT SERVICES RECORDSGLADWELL GOVERNMENTAL SVC INC1022Printed04/23/2020199452
12,878.55WATER USAGE SERVICESGOLDEN STATE WATER CO.0441Printed04/23/2020199453

30.002 EMAILED MAPS @ $5.00 EACHL.A. COUNTY ASSESSOR'S OFFICE0329Printed04/23/2020199454
147.68NAVY WOOL PANTSL.A. UNIFORMS & TAILORING 6955Printed04/23/2020199455
545.89SEC DEP - SKY HALL - 2/29/2020LOS ANGELES COUNTY0308Printed04/23/2020199456

1,947.50CDBG CONSULTING LABOR COMPLIANMICHAEL BAKER INTL, INC 6445Printed04/23/2020199457
559.56BUSINESS CARDSMINUTEMAN PRESS OF GARDENA 6428Printed04/23/2020199458
348.53OFFICE SUPPLIOES - ASDOFFICE DEPOT0367Printed04/23/2020199459

1,000.00POSTAGE FOR CITY HALL METERQUADIENT FINANCE USA INC5068APrinted04/23/2020199460
781.71COPIER LEASE / MAINTENANCE SVCRICOH USA INC5895Printed04/23/2020199461
255.00BACKGROUND CHECK - 2SMARTHIRE6759Printed04/23/2020199462

1,911.00DISPUTE RESOLUTION SERVICESSOUTH BAY CENTER FOR DISPUTE3094Printed04/23/2020199463
38,250.00LANDSCAPING MAINTENANCE SVCSSOUTH BAY LANDSCAPING INC4533Printed04/23/2020199464
5,419.00ANNUAL HVAC MAINT SVCS-CITY BUSOUTH COAST MECHANICAL INC6034Printed04/23/2020199465
1,863.02UTILITY GAS CHARGESSOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO.0440Printed04/23/2020199466

408.60PUBLISHING OF 2ND SUMMARY ORDISOUTHERN CALIFORNIA NEWS GROUP0211Printed04/23/2020199467
405.24WATER SERVICESPARKLETTS0346Printed04/23/2020199468
934.45UNARMED SECURITY SERVICESTHE ALPHA & OMEGA GROUP7445Printed04/23/2020199469
302.00SENIOR PROGRAM-MEALS ON WHEELSTHE SALVATION ARMY 0458Printed04/23/2020199470

2,382.33CREDIT CARD PAYMENTU.S. BANK VOYAGER FLEET SYS 3672-FLEETPrinted04/23/2020199471
576.43CREDIT CARD PAYMENTU.S. BANK 3672-ASDPrinted04/23/2020199472

3,291.72CREDIT CARD PAYMENTU.S. BANK 3672-CSDPrinted04/23/2020199473
1,603.90VISA CREDIT CARD CHARGES-PWDU.S. BANK 3672-PWDPrinted04/23/2020199474
1,816.57CREDIT CARD PAYMENTU.S. BANK 3672-RSDPrinted04/23/2020199475
6,111.99COMMUNITY OUTREACH SUPPLIESUS FOODS7510Printed04/23/2020199476

23,976.08BOOM TRUCK REPAIRSUTILITY CRANE & EQUIPMENT, INC6538Printed04/23/2020199477
466.21CELL PHONE SERVICESVERIZON WIRELESS3373Printed04/23/2020199478

193,361.81Checks Total (excluding void checks):36Total Checks:

193,361.81Bank Total (excluding void checks):36Total Payments:

Grand Total (excluding void checks):Total Payments: 36 193,361.81



MINUTES OF THE 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

April 20, 2020 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Mayor Pullen-Miles called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall council chamber, 14717
Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California.

Councilmembers Present: Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor Pro Tem Bernadette Suarez,
Councilmember James H. Osborne, Councilmember Pat Kearney,
Councilmember Daniel Reid

Other Participants: City Clerk Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Manager Kevin M. 
Chun, City Attorney Tiffany J. Israel, Los Angeles County 
Sheriff's Department Captain Duane Allen, Community Services 
Director Mike Estes, Assistant to the City Manager/Human 
Resources Director Raylette Felton, Municipal Services Director 
Michael Reyes, Finance Director Marla Pendleton, Community 
Development Director Sean Moore, and Assistant City Clerk 
Matthew Ceballos. 

B. CEREMONIALS

Mayor Pro Tem Suarez led the flag salute.

C. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT

Captain Allen summarized recent law enforcement activities.

D. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

• Johnny Castro, Resident, spoke about the reopening of small businesses in Lawndale and
inquired about a plan to reopen Lawndale businesses.

• Randall Abram, Resident, spoke about Project Roomkey housing homeless individuals in
Lawndale and inquired about the potential impacts.

• Pam London, Resident, spoke in opposition about Project Roomkey housing homeless
individuals in Lawndale.

E. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL

The City Council responded generally to the comments, but did not request placement of any issues
on a future meeting agenda.

F. CONSENT CALENDAR

5



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
April 20, 2020 
Page 2 of 5 

1. Consideration of Claims Against the City
Recommendation: that the City Council reject the claim filed by Vista Paint Corporation
and instruct staff to process the appropriate correspondence to the claimant.

2. Project Specifications and Authorization to Bid the Fiscal Year 2019-20 Annual
Street Improvements Project
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) adopt the plans and specifications (PS&E),
and approve the project scope of work, and authorize staff to advertise the project to
solicit bids; (b) approve a fifteen percent (15%) contingency of $97,500 for Grevillea
Avenue, 159th Street, and Freeman Avenue- Street Improvement Project SB1-FY 2019-
20 to avoid project delays and facilitate timely project completion; and (c) approve a
fifteen percent (15%) contingency of $79,500 for 147th Street-Street Improvement
Project CDBG FY 2019-20 to avoid project delays and facilitate timely project
completion.

3. Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget List of Projects, Road Repair and Accountability Act –
Senate Bill (SB) 1
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) adopt Resolution CC-2004-020, approving
the project list of streets: 161st Street, from Inglewood Avenue to the Cul De Sac, and
167th Street, from Hawthorne Boulevard to Freeman Avenue; and (b) direct staff to
include the additional funding necessary for these projects in the upcoming Fiscal Year
2020-21 budget as part of the normal budget process.

4. Adopting the Los Angeles County Fire Codes by Reference (1st Reading)
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) find the project to be categorically exempt
from California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of
the CEQA Guidelines; (b) approve the first reading to introduce Ordinance No. 1171-20,
adopting the Los Angeles County Fire Codes by Reference; and (c) order a public hearing
to be held for the second reading and adoption of Ordinance No. 1171-20.

5. Accounts Payable Register
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2004-019, authorizing
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $745,037.75.

6. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – April 6, 2020
Recommendation: that the City Council approve.

7. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Emergency Meeting – April 13, 2020
Recommendation: that the City Council approve.

Councilmember Kearney inquired about two line items on the accounts payable warrant register, 
agenda item number 5.  Recommended suspending the crossing guard and   

A lengthy dialogue ensued between the City Council and Staff on the Lawndale Beat and crossing 
guard usage and payment.  The dialogue continued between the City Council and Staff regarding 
the Lawndale Beat ridership, contractual obligation, possible suspension of services, funding, 
and alternatives during Covid-19. 



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
April 20, 2020 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 

 
Staff indicated it would come back with more information to Council on ridership data and 
possible alternatives for community transportation. 
 
A motion by Councilmember Reid to approve the consent calendar was seconded by 
Councilmember Kearney and carried by a vote of 5-0, following City Attorney Israel's reading 
of the title of Ordinance No. 1171-20. 

 
G. ADMINISTRATION 

 
8. Designation of City's Agents in Applying for Reimbursement from the California  

Governor's Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) adopt Resolution CC-2004-021, approving 
the designation of Applicant’s Agents Resolution as part of the City Request for Public 
Assistance from FEMA and Cal OES and (b)authorize the City Manager to take any other 
necessary action to apply for reimbursement for City costs resulting from the COVID-19 
pandemic. 
 

Municipal Service Director Micheal Reyes reported on the designation of City's Agents in applying 
for reimbursement from the California Governor's Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) 
 
Mayor Pullen-Miles inquired about if any reimbursement funds and be used for payroll.  Director 
Reyes responded that this was a preliminary request for reimbursement. 
 
A motion by Mayor Pullen-Miles to adopt Resolution CC-2004-021, approving the designation 
of Applicant’s Agents Resolution as part of the City Request for Public Assistance from 
FEMA and Cal OES and authorize the City Manager to take any other necessary action to 
apply for reimbursement for City costs resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic was seconded 
by Councilmember Reid and carried by a vote of 5-0. 
 
9. Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2020 

Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file the Quarterly Investment 
Report for the quarter ended March 31, 2020. 

 
Finance Director Marla Pendleton provided the Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter Ended 
March 31, 2020. 
 
The City Council received and filed the Quarterly Investment Report for the quarter ended 
March 31, 2020 by unanimous consent. 
 

H. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 
 
City Manager Kevin Chun had nothing to report. 
 

I. ITEMS FROM COUNCILMEMBERS 
 

10. Mayor/Councilmember Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
April 20, 2020 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 

Councilmember Osborne inquired if staff could explore other uses for a property sold to a developer 
and if other nearby City’s hotels were being used or sought out as emergency homeless shelters. 
 
City Manager Kevin Chun addressed the property land use and potential uses for it. Community 
Development Director Sean Moore provided feedback on the property. 
 
City Manager Chun responded as to what other South Bay Cities were being used or sought out as 
emergency homeless shelters.  
 
Councilmember Reid reported on a phone call with the L.A. County Supervisor’s office to request 
information on homeless sheltering issue. 
 
Councilmember Kearney requested that the budget subcommittee meet as soon as possible and 
requested the City Council hold a closed session for the employee evaluation of the City Manager 
at the May 18, 2020 City Council meeting. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Suarez had nothing to report. 
 
Mayor Pullen-Miles spoke about the cleanliness of the City and inquired about additional efforts 
that could be made. 
 
City Manager Chun and Interim Public Works Director Kahono Oei provided information on the 
ongoing street cleaning and the current operations.  Interim Public Works Director Oei stated that 
Public Works would be increasing patrols to assist in picking up abandon trash and keeping the 
public right-of-way clean. 
 

J. CLOSED SESSION 
 
At 7:24 p.m. the City Council entered into closed session. 
 
11. Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation 

The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.9(d)(4), because the City is considering whether to initiate litigation in one case 
against Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Metro) relating to the I-405 Improvement 
Project. 

 
At 8:00 p.m. the City Council entered back into open session. 
 
City Attorney Tiffany Israel reported the City Council met in Closed Session to discuss the 
one item listed on the Closed Session agenda. The City Council was updated on item number 
11 and there was no reportable action taken. 
 

K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to conduct, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 8:01 p.m. 

 
 
 



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
April 20, 2020 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 
 
Approved: 5/4/2020 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL special MEETING 

April 23, 2020 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Mayor Pullen-Miles called the meeting to order at 3:03 p.m. in the City Hall council chamber, 14717
Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California.

Councilmembers Present: Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor Pro Tem Bernadette Suarez,
Councilmember Pat Kearney, Councilmember Daniel Reid

Councilmembers Absent: Councilmember James H. Osborne 

Other Participants: City Clerk Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Manager Kevin M. 
Chun, City Attorney Tiffany J. Israel, Assistant to the City 
Manager/Human Resources Director Raylette Felton, Municipal 
Services Director Michael Reyes, Community Development 
Director Sean Moore, and Assistant City Clerk Matthew Ceballos. 

B. CEREMONIALS

Councilmember Reid led the flag salute.

C. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

• Pam London, Resident, spoke about “Project Roomkey” and expressed her disapproval of the
program.

D. CLOSED SESSION

At 3:10 p.m. the City Council entered into closed session.

1. Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation
The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section
54956.9(d)(4), because the City is considering whether to initiate litigation in one case
against Best Western Plus South Bay Hotel and the County of Los Angeles.

At 4:18 p.m. the City Council entered back into open session. 

City Attorney Tiffany Israel reported the City Council met in Closed Session to discuss the 
one item listed on the Closed Session agenda.  The City Council was updated on item number 
1 and there was no reportable action taken.  The City Council did give direction to staff to 
prepare a statement for the community. 

E. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to conduct, the mayor adjourned the meeting at 4:19 p.m.

6



Minutes - City Council Special Meeting 
April 23, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 
 
Approved: 5/4/2020 



7





01001.0001/644030.1 

ATTACHMENT A 

 ORDINANCE N0.1171-20 

3 



Ordinance No. 1171-20 
Adopting 2020 County Fire Code 

1 

ORDINANCE NO. 1171-20 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 

AMENDING PORTIONS OF LAWNDALE MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 15.20  
TO UPDATE UNIFORM FIRE CODE ADOPTED BY THE CITY BY REFERENCE, 

BY ADOPTING THE 2020 LOS ANGELES COUNTY FIRE CODES 
WITH LOCAL AMENDMENTS 

AND FINDING OF EXEMPTION FROM CEQA 
 
 

SUMMARY:  This ordinance will update the uniform codes adopted by the City 
by adopting the 2020 Los Angeles County Fire Codes 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 50022.9, the City of Lawndale ("City") 
adopts portions of certain Los Angeles County codes as the City's codes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the California Fire Code establishes statewide codes and regulations for fire 
protection and is published every three years by order of the California legislature; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the 2019 California Fire Code is based on the International Code Council's 
("ICC") 2014 International Building Code; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the 2019 California Fire Code was published by the State on July 1, 2019 and 
becomes effective on January 1, 2020; and  
 
 WHEREAS, a local jurisdiction has the right granted by the State to establish more 
restrictive building standards given that the amendments are reasonably necessary because of local 
climatic, geological, and/or topographic conditions; and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 10, 2020, Los Angeles County updated portions of its codes by 
adopting the  updated California Fire Code with local amendments and incorporating them as the 
County's 2020 Title 32 (Fire Codes); and 
  
 WHEREAS, the City has historically adopted certain county codes with the County’s local 
amendments as a uniformity of standards serves to minimize conflict and confusion in addressing 
the public health needs of the community; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to adopt the 2020 Los Angeles County Fire Codes with all 
local amendments proposed by the County; and  
 
 WHEREAS, this matter was agendized for a duly noticed public hearing before the City 
Council on May 4, 2020, and evidence was heard and presented from all persons interested in 
affecting said proposal, from all persons protesting the same and from members of the City staff, and 
the City Council has reviewed, analyzed and studied said proposal; and 
 



Ordinance No. 1171-20 
Adopting 2020 County Fire Code 

2 

 WHEREAS, at this time the City Council desires to update the City's Fire Codes. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, 
CALIFORNIA, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. The recitals above are true and correct and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
 
 SECTION 2. Subsection A of Section 15.20.010 of the Lawndale Municipal Code is 
amended to read, in its entirety, as follows: 
 

 "A. The 2019 California Fire Code as amended by Title 32 the Los 
Angeles County Fire Code together with their appendices are adopted by the city 
as the city's fire code for the purpose of prescribing regulations governing the 
creation and maintenance of conditions dangerous to life and property due to 
hazards of fire and explosions." 

 
 SECTION 3. Section 15.20.070 of the Lawndale Municipal Code is amended to read, in 
its entirety, as follows: 
 

"15.20.070 Fire Code - Amendments Generally 
 
The 2019 Los Angeles County Fire Code, as adopted by Section 15.20.010, is 
hereby amended as follows: 
 
Wherever reference is made to the County of Los Angeles or to the unincorporated 
area of the County, such area shall be deemed to include within its corporate limits 
the area of the city for purposes of fulfilling the requirements of this chapter." 
  

 SECTION 4. The City Council hereby makes a finding of reasonable necessity for the 
amendments as stated separately for each such amendment and identified in the Los Angeles 
County Code Title 32 (Fire Code).  These amendments to the Los Angeles County Code, 
incorporating the uniform and international codes, are reasonably necessary due to the local 
climatic, geological and/or topographical conditions characterized by hot, dry summers and the 
high potential for seismic activity which make structures particularly vulnerable to rapidly 
spreading fires and structural damage. 
 
 SECTION 5. The adoption of this Ordinance is hereby determined to be exempt from the 
California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to State Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) as a 
project that has no potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. 
 
 SECTION 6. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is 
for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of any competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.  
The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance, and each and every 
section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase thereof not declared invalid or unconstitutional 



Ordinance No. 1171-20 
Adopting 2020 County Fire Code 

3 

without regard to whether any portion of the ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
 SECTION 7. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this ordinance, 
and shall make a minute of the passage and adoption thereof in the records of and the proceedings 
of the City Council at which the same is passed and adopted.  This ordinance shall be in full force 
and effect thirty (30) days after its final passage and adoption, and within fifteen (15) days after 
its final passage, the City Clerk shall cause it to be published in a newspaper of general circulation 
and shall post the same at the City Hall, the Lawndale Community Center and the United States 
Post Office, Lawndale Branch. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 4th day of May, 2020. 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale  ) 
 
I, Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify 
that the City Council duly introduced the foregoing Ordinance No. 1171-20 at its regular meeting 
held on the 20th day of April, 2020, and duly approved and adopted said ordinance at its regular 
meeting held on the 4th day of May, 2020, by the following roll call vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor  X     
Bernadette Suarez, Mayor Pro Tem X     
Daniel Reid  X     
James H. Osborne X     
Pat Kearny X     

 
 
______________________________    ______________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk    Date 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Tiffany J. Israel, City Attorney 





















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































8









9





10



City of Lawndale 
Quarterly Budget Update 

Third Quarter of Fiscal Year 2019-2020  

March 31, 2020 

OVERVIEW  

This quarterly report represents the City’s General Fund revenues and expenditures through March 31, 2020. 

GENERAL FUND 

The General Fund supports the day-to-day activities of the City, which includes general government, public safety, 
municipal services, and public works.  The planning and community development, recreation and community services 
departments were separated from the General Fund this fiscal year and are accounted for in their own enterprise funds; 
however, contract services for crossing guards are still included in the General Fund.  The Operating Transfers budgeted 
in the General Fund for the 20% housing set aside (Dept 410) and support for the recreation and senior programs (Dept 
510) have been separated into a General Fund Support budget since these transfers are not related to any specific
department.  The General fund activities are primarily supported from motor vehicle in-lieu, sales and use, district
transactional (Measure L), utility users and property taxes.

General Fund Financial Condition:  During the mid-year budget update, the City was experiencing growth and the 
economic condition of the General Fund was healthy.  On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared an 
International Public Health Emergency due to the outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID19”).  On March 
4, 2020, Governor Newsom declared a state of emergency for California.  March 16, 2020, the Los Angeles County 
Health Officer issued an order for social distancing and temporary closure of certain business and on the same day the 
City of Lawndale declared a local emergency.  As a result of the pandemic, ‘stay-at-home’ orders and business closures 
and/or limited business activities, the world economy is feeling the impact of this emergency.  Unemployment rates are 
increasing, the Federal Reserve rate has decreased from 2.25–2.50% on 7/1/19 to 0-.25% as of March 30, 2020 and many 
businesses are still not operating.  The Coronavirus, Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act has deferred 
some of the revenue flow to the General Fund and other revenue sources, such as Transient Occupancy Tax revenue, 
could potentially be lost.  With the economic spiral downward, some staff are able to work from home and others unable 
to work during this pandemic season.  Revenue increases from the first two quarters of the fiscal years are able to cover 
the losses in the second two quarters.  General Fund projections for fiscal year-end result in a net increase of $479,775 
($15,029,142 anticipated revenue less $14,549,367 projected expenditures).   Decreasing revenue and increasing 
expenditures are anticipated to continue in fiscal year 2020-2021 and a City Council budget sub-committee was created 
to make recommendations in this challenging period.     

Revenue.  The General Fund accounts for about 54% of the City’s total revenues.  The third quarter General Fund 
revenue is $8,960,633, 19% ($1,427,870) higher than the same quarter in fiscal year 2018-2019.  The increase is 
attributed to the ¾ cent district transaction tax- Measure L, which became effective on April 1, 2019.  Since the passage 
of Measure L, the City has cumulatively received $1,961,393 of which $1,427,904 was received in the current fiscal 
year and is the direct result in the year-to-year General Fund revenue increase.   



City of Lawndale 
Quarterly Budget Update 

Third Quarter of Fiscal Year 2019-2020    
 

 

 
 
 

● Sales and Use Tax-  The Bradley Burns 1% Local Sales Tax,  as of March 31st, are for sales transactions through 
February 29th, and is comparable to the amount received in the same period last fiscal year.  However, the 
economy drastically changed after this period making it difficult to project revenue for the remainder of the fiscal 
year.  To make matters more difficult, on March 30th, Governor Newsom signed an Executive Order 
implementing two programs affecting sales, use, and transaction taxes overall: 

 
• 90-Day Sales Tax Extension Plan- all businesses filing sales, use, and transaction tax returns and payments 

for less than $1 million in tax liability will automatically receive an extension until July 31st to file their 
March 31st tax return. 

 
• Small Business Relief Payment Plan- In addition to the 90-Day extension, small businesses are able to enter 

into an interest free installment payment plan to pay up to $50,000 of tax liability in equal installment 
payments over a 12-month period.  The first payment being due August 31st and final payment due July 31, 
2021.  If the March 31 total tax liability does not exceed the $50,000 limit, business can include additional 
sales tax liabilities until the limit is reached. 
 

Therefore, sales, use, and transaction tax return filings will be delayed, making information unavailable to determine 
the economic impact on businesses and the related revenue to the City.  Once the returns are filed, installment 
payments will delay the receipt of the revenue.  HdL has provided an economic projection estimating the impact to 
the City of Lawndale to be a deferral of $198,844 of Bradley-Burns sales tax from the current fiscal year to fiscal 
year 2020-21.  The current year budget shortage of $220,844 includes the deferral of revenue.  
 
● Sales Transaction Tax- Measure L-   The 90-Day Sales Tax Extension Plan and the Small Business Relief 

Payment Plan described under sales and use tax above, also apply to the ¾ cent district transaction tax and are 
estimated to result in a $149,133 deferral between the current fiscal year and fiscal year 2020-21.  At this time, 
$2,249,000 is estimated from transaction taxes, which is adjusted by the deferral amount.  Excess revenue of 
$149,000 is anticipated over the $2,100,000 budget for fiscal year 2020-2021. 

 
● Other taxes- Franchise Fees, Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) and Business License revenue are the most 

significant revenue sources included in the category of Other Taxes.  Both Franchise Fees and TOT received 
to-date are comparable to the nine-month period ended March 31, 2019.  Business License fees are down 
$114,113 for the nine-month year-to-year comparative period due to the payment due date being extended two-



City of Lawndale 
Quarterly Budget Update 

Third Quarter of Fiscal Year 2019-2020    
 

 

months in the current fiscal year to implement a new online collection system.  As of March 31st, approximately 
51% of business licenses had renewed and paid for the calendar year.  Second notices were sent advising 
businesses of late fees being assessed as of April 1st.  Business License and Franchise Fees are on target with 
the budget.  TOT however, is estimated to yield a $203,000 current year budget shortage due to statewide 
‘shelter-in-place’ orders and Project Roomkey contracts to shelter homeless medically vulnerable people.  
Overall, Other Taxes is anticipating a budget shortage of $220,761 for the fiscal year. 

 
● Utility User Taxes (UUT) - compared to the nine-month period ended March 31, 2019, UUT revenue has 

decreased 9.3%, $110,022 from $1,177,517 in fiscal year 2018-2019 to $1,067,495 in fiscal year 2019-20.  
UUT revenue has been trending downward for years.  The annual revenue is estimated at $1,657,000, a 
$143,000 anticipated shortage from the $1,800,000 budget. 

 
● Charges for Services – Revenue includes encroachment permits, industrial waste permits, small cell wireless 

facility fees and vehicle impound fees.  Compared to the same period in fiscal year 2018-2019, revenue is 
down $51,037, 20.6%, from $247,176 to $196,139.  Encroachment permits had a $56,810 decrease comparing 
the two fiscal year-to-date collections, but an anticipated $82,701 increase for the fiscal year ($165,701 
anticipated for the year compared to $83,000 budgeted).   In addition, $23,240 of unbudgeted revenue is 
anticipated for small cell wireless facility fees.     

 
Expenditures.  At the end of the third quarter, General Fund expenditures overall are on target (54% expended) and 
$488,297 is expected to be unexpended at fiscal year-end.  Of the year-end unexpended balance, $202,766 will be 
continued into fiscal year 2020-2021 for capital projects. 
 

 

 

 

 



City of Lawndale 
Quarterly Budget Update 

Third Quarter of Fiscal Year 2019-2020    
 

 

 

 

● General Fund Support - this cost center was created to capture general fund operating transfers to other funds.  
The $95,531 increase in General Fund support is attributed to an anticipated $104,245 increase in operating 
transfers to Community Services and offset by an estimated $8,714 cost savings in Senior Activities.  As a 
direct result of COVID19, the Community Center had to cancel events, refund facility rental fees and class 
registrations.  Revenue shortfalls of $104,133 are anticipated for the fiscal year.  The most significant revenue 
shortfalls include summer camp fees, Community Center facility rental fees and sports recreation fees, 
attributing to $46,400, $23,940 and $16,282, respectively.    

 
● City Attorney - Although contract legal costs are shown to approximate the annual City Attorney budget; 

additional unknown legal costs resulting from Project Roomkey related services are anticipated to cause 
shortages in the City Attorney budget for the fiscal year. 

 
● City Clerk -  The Deputy City Clerk retirement, vacancy and reclassification into an Administrative Assistant 

II, resulted in $51,972 salary savings for the fiscal year.   
 
● City Manager - The City Manager retirement, part-time contract labor, and vacancy attributed to the $94,638 

salary savings for the fiscal year.   
 
● General Operations - Unexpended Community Center upgrade costs of $50,000 attributed to the $55,583 

budget surplus for the fiscal year. 
 
● Municipal Services - The $87,031 budget savings includes salary savings, unexpended abatement costs, vehicle 

maintenance, vehicle fuel and special events costs of $27,051, $30,000, $9,500, $6,500 and $4,720, 
respectively.  Abatement costs were established for outstanding code cases of which only one incurred costs 
to resolve.  Vehicle maintenance and fuel cost savings related to extensive repairs requiring the acquisition of 
a new vehicle with air quality restricted funding rather than repairing vehicle.  The special events savings are 
related to the year-end pet fair, which is expected to be cancelled due to COVID19 concerns.  

 
● Public Works - Savings relate to unexpended capital project funding of $201,284 to be continued into fiscal 

year 2020-2021 for expending. 
 
● Community Services Crossing Guards - Contract services were not required and cancelled due to statewide 

‘shelter-in-place’ orders and school closures.  This attributed to approximately $50,100 of savings this fiscal 
year. 

 
 
For more information:  This summary is based on detailed information from the City’s financial management system.  
For any questions about this report please contact Marla L. Pendleton, CPA, Director of Finance / City Treasurer at 
310-973-3241
 



11





12





13



14


	20-05-04 reg.agn
	01. Reading of Ord.
	02. NOC Inglewood Ave
	03. Routine Records Destruction
	04. Warrant
	Warrant Summary - 2020.05.04
	Check Register - 2020.04.23

	05. 20-04-20.min
	06. 20-04-23.sp min
	07. 2020 Fire Code (2nd Reading)
	Ord. 1171-20 2020 Fire Code.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 1171-20
	AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL


	08. SBWIB Appointment
	09. Billboard subcommittee selection
	10. Quarterly Budget Review FY20 Qtr3
	11. COVID-19 Further Modifications
	12. Project Roomkeyn Update
	13. Councilmembers Report of Attendance
	14. CS - Lit

	Back to Agenda: 


